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Chapter 8.68 NOISE CONTROL
Article I. General Provisions
8.68.010 Legislative findings.

A.
Excessive, unnecessary or offensive noise within the city is detrimental to the public health,
safety, welfare and the peace and quiet of the inhabitants of the city and therefore is declared a public
nuisance; and
B.
Every person in the city is entitled to live in an environment free from excessive,
unnecessary or offensive noise levels; and
C.
The establishment of maximum permissible noise levels will further the public health, safety,
welfare and peace and quiet of county inhabitants. (Prior code § 66.01.101)
8.68.020 Declaration of policy.

It is declared to be the policy and purpose of this chapter to assess complaints of noises alleged to
exceed the ambient noise levels. Further, it is declared to be the policy to contain sound levels in the city at
their present levels with the ultimate goal of reducing such levels, when and where feasible and without
causing undue burdens, to meet the noise standards set forth in this chapter. (Prior code § 66.01.102)
8.68.030 Liberal construction.

This chapter shall be liberally construed so as to effectuate its purposes. (Prior code § 66.01.103)
8.68.040 Definitions.

The following words, phrases and terms as used in this chapter shall have the following meanings:
“Agricultural property” means a parcel of property used in part or whole for agricultural purposes.
“Ambient noise level” means the allencompassing noise level associated with a given environment,
being a composite of sounds from all sources, excluding the alleged offensive noise, at the location and
approximate time at which a comparison with the alleged offensive noise is to be made.
“Cumulative period” means an additive period of time composed of individual time segments which
may be continuous or interrupted.
“Decibel” or “dB” means a unit which denotes the ratio between two quantities which are proportional
to power; the number of decibels corresponding to the ratio of two amounts of power is ten (10) times the
logarithm to the base of ten (10) of this ratio.

“Emergency work” means the use of any machinery, equipment, vehicle, manpower or other activity in
an effort to protect, maintain, provide or restore safe conditions in the community or for citizenry, or work by
private or public utilities when restoring utility service.
“Hertz” means a unit of measurement of frequency, numerically equal to cycles per second.
“Impulsive noise” means a noise characterized by brief excursions of sound pressures whose peak
levels are very much greater than the ambient noise level, such as might be produced by the impact of a pile
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driver, punch press or a drop hammer, typically with one second or less duration.
“Noise level” means the “A” weighed sound pressure level in decibels obtained by using a sound level
meter at slow response with a reference pressure of twenty (20) microPascals. The unit of measurement shall
be designated as dBA.
“Person” means a person, firm, association, copartnership, joint venture, corporation or any entity,
public or private in nature.
“Portable gasolinepowered blower” means any portable power equipment that is powered by a
gasoline engine and commonly used in landscape or property maintenance to blow, disperse, or redistribute
dust, dirt, leaves, grass clippings, cuttings, and trimmings from trees and shrubs or other debris on sidewalks,
driveways, lawns, or other surfaces.
“Residential property” means a parcel of real property which is developed and used either in part or in
whole for residential purposes other than transient uses such as hotels and motels, and other than
nonconforming residential uses within C4, M1, M2, M1S, and M2S zones.
“Simple tone noise” or “pure tone noise” means a noise characterized by the presence of a
predominant frequency or frequencies such as might be produced by whistle or hum.
“Sound level meter” means an instrument that meets or exceeds American National Standard
Institute’s Standard S1.41971 for Type 2 sound level meters or an instrument and the associated recording
and analyzing equipment which will provide equivalent data.
“Sound pressure level” means a sound pressure level of a sound, in decibels, as defined in ANSI
Standards 51.21962 and 51.131921; that is, twenty (20) times the logarithm to the base ten (10) of the ratio
of the pressure of the sound to a reference pressure, which reference pressure shall be 0.0002 dynes per
square centimeter. (Prior code § 66.01.105)
8.68.050 Sound level measurement (general).

A.
Any noise level measurements made pursuant to the provisions of this chapter shall be
performed using a sound level meter as defined in Section 8.68.040 of this chapter.
B.
The location selected for measuring exterior noise levels shall be at any point on the
receiver’s affected property. In the case of interior noise measurements, the windows shall be in normal
seasonal configuration and the measurement shall be made at a point at least four feet from the wall, ceiling or
floor nearest the affected occupied area. (Prior code § 66.01.106)
Article II. Noise Standards
8.68.060 Exterior noise standards.

A.
The following noise standards unless otherwise specifically indicated in this article shall
apply to all agricultural and residential properties.
1.

From seven a.m. to ten p.m. the exterior noise standard shall be fiftyfive (55) dBA.

2.

From ten p.m. to seven a.m. the exterior noise standard shall be fifty (50) dBA.

B.
It is unlawful for any person at any location to create any noise which causes the noise
levels when measured on agricultural or residential property to exceed for the duration of time set forth
following, the specified exterior noise standards in any one hour by:
Cumulative Duration of the
Intrusive Sound

Allowance
Decibels

1.

Cumulative period of 30
minutes per hour

0

2.

Cumulative period of 15
minutes per hour

+5
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3.

Cumulative period of 5
minutes per hour

+10

4.

Cumulative period of 1
minute per hour

+15

5.

Level not to be exceeded
for any time per hour

+20

C.
Each of the noise limits specified in subsection B of this section shall be reduced by five
dBA for impulsive or simple tone noises, or for noises consisting of speech or music.
D.
If the ambient noise level exceeds that permitted by any of the first four noise limit
categories specified in subsection B of this section, the allowable noise limit shall be increased in five dBA
increments in each category to encompass the ambient noise level. If the ambient noise level exceeds the fifth
noise level category, the maximum ambient noise level shall be the noise limit for that category. (Prior code §
66.02.201)
8.68.070 Interior noise standards.

A.
In any apartment, condominium, townhouse, duplex or multiple dwelling unit it is unlawful
for any person to create any noise from inside his or her unit that causes the noise level when measured in a
neighboring unit during the periods ten p.m. to seven a.m. to exceed:
1.

Fortyfive (45) dBA for a cumulative period of more than five minutes in any hour;

2.

Fifty (50) dBA for a cumulative period of more than one minute in any hour;

3.

Fiftyfive (55) dBA for any period of time.

B.
If the ambient noise level exceeds that permitted by any of the noise level categories
specified in subsection A of this section, the allowable noise limit shall be increased in five dBA increments in
each category to encompass the ambient noise level. (Prior code § 66.02.202)
8.68.080 Exemptions.

The following activities shall be exempted from the provisions of this chapter:
A.
School bands, school athletic and school entertainment events. School entertainment
events shall not include events sponsored by student organizations;
B.
Activities conducted on parks and public playgrounds, provided such parks and public
playgrounds are owned and operated by a public entity;
C.
Any mechanical device, apparatus or equipment related to or connected with emergency
activities or emergency work;
D.
Noise sources due to the erection (including excavation), demolition, alteration or repair of
any building or structure between the hours of seven a.m. and six p.m., on Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday,
Thursday, Friday and Saturday, and between nine a.m. and six p.m. on Sunday; provided, however, that the
operation of an internal combustion engine shall not be exempt pursuant to this subsection if such engine is
not equipped with suitable exhaust and intake silencers which are in good working order. The director of
building inspections, may permit work to be done during the hours not exempt by this subsection in the case of
urgent necessity and in the interest of public health and welfare for a period not to exceed three days.
Application for this exemption may be made in conjunction with the application for the work permit or during
progress of the work;
E.
Noise sources associated with agricultural operations provided such operations take place
between the hours of six a.m. and eight p.m.; provided, however, that the operation of an internal combustion
engine shall not be exempt pursuant to this subsection if such engine is not equipped with suitable exhaust
and intake silencers which are in good working order;
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F.
Any mechanical device, apparatus or equipment which are utilized for the protection or
salvage of agricultural crops during period of adverse weather conditions or when the use of mobile noise
sources is necessary for pest control; provided, however, that the operation of an internal combustion engine
shall not be exempt pursuant to this subsection if such engine is not equipped with suitable exhaust and intake
silencers which are in good working order;
G.
Noise sources associated with maintenance of street trees and residential area property
provided said activities take place between the hours of seven a.m. and six p.m.;
H.
Tree and park maintenance activities conducted by the city department of parks and
community services; provided, however, that use of portable gasolinepowered blowers within two hundred
(200) feet of residential property shall comply with the requirements of Section 8.68.150 of this chapter;
I.
Any activity to the extent provisions of Chapter 65 of Title 42 of the United States Code, and
Articles 3 and 3.5 of Chapter 4 of Division 9 of the Public Utilities Code of the state of California preempt local
control of noise regulations and land use regulations related to noise control of airports and their surrounding
geographical areas, any noise source associated with the construction, development, manufacture,
maintenance, testing or operation of any aircraft engine, or of any weapons system or subsystems which are
owned, operated or under the jurisdiction of the United States, any other activity to the extent regulation thereof
has been preempted by state or federal law or regulation;
J.
Any noise sources associated with the maintenance and operation of aircraft or airports
which are owned or operated by the United States. (Ord. 2010021 § 10; prior code § 66.02.203)

8.68.090 Preexisting industrial or commercial facilities—Transition period.

A.
Any industrial or commercial facility in existence prior to the effective date of this chapter
shall be allowed a one year period commencing on said date within which to comply with this chapter.
B.
During said one year period all such facilities shall make reasonable efforts to be in
compliance and to reduce noise which exceeds the standards specified in this chapter. Commencing at the
end of one year after the effective date of this chapter, any such facility shall be subject to all applicable
requirements of this chapter.
C.
If any facility which is not in compliance by the end of said one year period applies for a
variance pursuant to Section 8.68.260 of this chapter, in deciding whether to grant a variance the hearing
board shall take into account the extent to which the applicant has endeavored to reduce noise during said one
year period to meet the standards specified in this chapter.
D.
This section applies only to a commercial or industrial facility already in existence or for
which the work of improvement had commenced prior to the effective date of this chapter.
E.
As used in this section “industrial facility” means any building, structure, factory, plant,
premises or portion thereof used for manufacturing or industrial purposes and “commercial facility” means any
building, structure, premise or portion thereof used for wholesale or retail commercial purposes. (Prior code §
66.02.204)
8.68.100 Schools, hospitals and churches.

It is unlawful for any person to create any noise which causes the noise level at any school, hospital or
church while the same is in use to exceed the noise standards specified in Section 8.68.060 of this chapter or
to create any noise which unreasonably interferes with the use of such institution or unreasonably disturbs or
annoys patients in the hospital. In any disputed case, interfering noise which is ten (10) dBA or more, greater
than the ambient noise level at the building, shall be deemed excessive and unlawful. (Prior code § 66.02.205)
8.68.110 Residential pumps, fans and air conditioners.

A.

It is unlawful for any person to operate any residential fans, air conditioners, stationary
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pumps, stationary cooling towers, stationary compressors, similar mechanical device or any combination
thereof installed after the effective date of this chapter in any manner so as to create any noise which would
cause the maximum noise level to exceed:
1.
Sixty (60) dBA at any point at least one foot inside the property line of the affected
residential or agricultural property and three to five feet above ground level;
2.

Fiftyfive (55) dBA in the center of a neighboring patio three to five feet above ground level;

3.
Fiftyfive (55) dBA outside of the neighboring living area window nearest the equipment
location, measurements shall be taken with the microphone not more than three feet from the window opening
but at least three feet from any other surface.
B.
Equipment installed five years after the effective date of this chapter must comply with a
maximum limit of fiftyfive (55) dBA at any point at least one foot inside the property line of the affected
residential or agricultural property and three to five feet above ground level.
C.
Equipment installed before the effective date of this chapter must comply with a limit of
sixtyfive (65) dBA maximum sound level, at any point at least one foot inside the property line of the affected
agricultural or residential property and three to five feet above ground level after the effective date of this
chapter. (Prior code § 66.02.206)
8.68.120 Offroad vehicles.

It is unlawful for any person to operate any motorcycle or recreational offroad vehicle on or off a public
road in such a manner that the noise level exceeds the exterior noise standards specified in Section 8.68.060
of this chapter. (Prior code § 66.02.207)
8.68.130 Waste disposal vehicles.

It is unlawful for any person authorized to engage in waste disposal service or garbage collection to
operate any truckmounted waste or garbage loading and/or composting equipment or similar mechanical
device in any manner so as to create any noise exceeding the following level, when measured at a distance of
fifty (50) feet from the equipment or any agricultural or residential property.
A.
New equipment purchased or leased on or after a date six months from the effective date of
this chapter shall not exceed a noise level of eighty (80) dBA.
B.
New equipment purchased or leased on or after fortytwo (42) months from the effective
date of this chapter shall not exceed a noise level of seventyfive (75) dBA.
C.
Present equipment shall not exceed a noise level of eighty (80) dBA on or after five years
from the effective date of this chapter.
The provisions of this section shall not abridge or conflict with the powers of the state over motor
vehicle control. (Prior code § 66.02.208)
8.68.140 Recovery of police officer cost for multiple responses to large parties or gatherings.

A.
When a large party or gathering occurs at a premises and a police officer at the scene
determines that there is a threat to the public peace, health, safety or general welfare, the person(s) in charge
of the premises and the person(s) responsible for the event, or if any of those persons are minors, then the
parent(s) or guardian(s) of those minors will be held jointly and severally liable for the cost of providing police
personnel on special security assignment over and above the services normally provided by the department to
respond to such events. The police personnel utilized during a second response after the first warning to
control the threat to the public peace, health, safety or general welfare shall be deemed to be on special
security assignment over and above the services normally provided. The costs of such special security
assignment may include minor damages to city property and/or injuries to city personnel.
B.

The fee charged will not be in excess of five hundred dollars ($500.00) for a single incident.
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No fee shall be assessed unless a written warning has been issued by police personnel during the first
response. The city reserves its legal options to elect any other legal remedies when said costs or damage
exceed five hundred dollars ($500.00).
C.
The expense of services provided by special security assignment officers shall be charged
against the person liable for the expenses under this section. The charge constitutes a debt of that person to
the city, and is collectible by said city in the same manner as in the case of an obligation under a contract,
express or implied. (Prior code § 66.02.209)
8.68.150 Findings.

A.
Outdoor recreational activities involving amplified sound, including, but not limited to,
athletic events, sporting events, entertainment events and concerts, may create excessive noise which is
detrimental to the public health, safety, welfare and the peace and quiet of the inhabitants of the city and its
environs.
B.
Prevailing weather conditions within the city, including temperature inversions, cause the
sounds of outdoor activities to bounce in varying directions and reach varying residential locations at different
times, sometimes close to the source of sound and sometimes farther away, sometimes in one direction from
the sound source and sometimes in another direction. These conditions are particularly acute during the
months of September and October.
C.
The city’s existing noise regulations, which require extended offsite measurements of the
sound rather than measurements at its source, are very cumbersome and expensive to enforce, especially in
connection with outdoor recreational activities.
D.
Studies by the environmental health division of the Sacramento County environmental
management department conclude that imposing a volume limit of ninetysix (96) dba leq measured at the
sound booth or other reasonable location within one hundred fifty (150) feet of the source of amplified sound at
an outdoor activity is generally equivalent to the limits already imposed by the city’s noise regulations which
measure sound levels offsite, in that it is substantially likely that sound levels in excess of ninetysix (96) dba
leq will result in many violations of provisions of this chapter, while sound levels of ninetysix (96) dba leq or
lower are likely to result in few such violations.
E.

Limiting sound levels of outdoor activities to ninetysix (96) dba leq and requiring amplified

sound not to be used at outdoor activities after ten p.m. on Sunday through Thursday, and after eleven p.m. at
other times, is necessary to protect the public health, safety, welfare and the peace and quiet of the inhabitants
of the city and its environs.
F.
A sound level of ninetysix (96) dba is as loud as or louder than a refuse truck three feet
from the listener, a jet plane taking off one thousand (1000) feet from the listener, or a train horn one hundred
(100) feet from the listener.
G.
Limiting sound levels at the source is content neutral. It helps to avoid the problem of
complaints being received, and therefore measurements being made and enforcement undertaken, only in
connection with certain kinds of activities, or certain kinds of music, which some people may consider
objectionable and not other kinds of activities or music which may be just as loud.
H.
A variance procedure can be devised to raise the sound limit or modify the time restrictions
upon a showing that a facility, because of its design, location or other characteristics, is capable of handling
higher sound levels or later activities without substantially increasing the likelihood that violations of the other
provisions of this chapter will occur. (Prior code § 66.02.210)
8.68.160 Outdoor recreational activities.

A.
It is unlawful for any person to conduct, or permit to be conducted on its property, any
outdoor recreational activity, including, but not limited to, athletic
events, sporting events, entertainment events and concerts at which amplified noise, amplified music, or
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amplified sound exceeding the following levels is created: ninetysix (96) dba leq during the months of
September and October; ninetyeight (98) dba leq during the months of November through August. The noise,
music or sound shall be measured at the sound booth or other reasonable location which is not more than one
hundred fifty (150) feet from the source. Every person conducting, or permitting to be conducted, on its
property, any outdoor recreational activity shall, upon request, permit the chief of the environmental health
division, Sacramento environmental management department, or the chief’s designee, to place a sound level
monitor (with or without an accompanying staff member) at a location described in this subsection to monitor
sound levels.
B.

Time Limits.

1.
Sunday through Thursday. Except as provided in subsection (B)(2) of this section, the
amplified sound associated with the outdoor activities described in subsection A of this section shall
commence not earlier than nine a.m. and shall be terminated no later than ten p.m. on Sunday, Monday,
Tuesday, Wednesday and Thursday.
2.
Friday, Saturday and the Day Before Specified Holidays. The amplified sound associated
with the outdoor activities described in subsection A of this section shall commence not earlier than nine a.m.
and shall be terminated no later than eleven p.m. on Friday, Saturday and the day before the specified holidays
listed below. For purposes of this provision, the specified holidays are the holidays specified in Government
Code Sections 6700 and 6701, as those sections may be amended from time to time. (Prior code § 66.02.211)
8.68.170 Deviation from the sound limits, time limits and place of sound measurement requirements of
Section 8.68.160—Planning and design commission approval.

In addition to the special condition permits authorized by section 8.68.250 and the variances
authorized by section 8.68.260 of this chapter, the operator of any outdoor activity may seek approval to
deviate from any or all of the following: (a) the maximum sound limits, (b) the time limits, or (c) the requirement
for the place of sound measurement as set forth in section 8.68.160, on the grounds that due to the nature or
design of the operator’s facility or its location, it is capable of handling a higher sound level or amplified sound
ending at a later time without substantially increasing the likelihood that violations of any other standards set
forth in this chapter will occur. As part of the application, the applicant shall submit a report of the soundrelated
characteristics of the facility prepared by an acoustical engineer, and shall pay an application fee set by
resolution of the city council.
A.
Applications Filed after July 1, 1995. Applications filed after July 1, 1995 shall be heard and
decided pursuant to the following procedures:
1.
Applications. An application to deviate from the foregoing requirements of section 8.68.160
which is filed after July 1, 1995 shall be heard and decided by the planning and design commission, and shall
be subject to the general requirements applicable to applications for planning and design commission
conditional use permits as set forth in chapter 17.808.
2.
Hearing Procedure. A public hearing shall be held by the planning and design commission.
Notice of the public hearing shall be given in the same manner as notice is given of a hearing on a planning
and design commission conditional use permit. Notice of the hearing shall also be given by publication in at
least one newspaper of general circulation at least ten days prior to the date of the hearing.
3.
Approval. The planning and design commission may approve an application to deviate from
the maximum sound limit, time limits, or place of sound measurement requirements if it finds that, due to the
nature, design or location of the operator’s facility, it is capable of handling a higher sound level or an amplified
sound ending at a later time or having the sound measured at a different location without substantially
increasing the likelihood that violations of any other standards set forth in this chapter will occur and that
approval of the application will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare as it relates to noise.
The planning and design commission may impose such conditions as may be necessary to carry out the intent
and purpose of this chapter and to protect the public health, safety or welfare as it relates to noise. The
planning and design commission shall adopt findings and render its decision in the same manner that it
decides applications for conditional use permits.
4.

Appeal. Any person dissatisfied with the decision of the planning and design commission on
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an application to deviate from the maximum sound limit, time limits or place of sound measurement
requirements of section 8.68.160 may appeal that decision to the city council by filing a notice of appeal with
the city clerk pursuant to section 1.24.010. Any appeal shall be filed within ten days of the date of the planning
and design commission decision. The city clerk shall thereafter notice the matter for hearing before the city
council by publishing notice of the hearing on the appeal in at least one newspaper of general circulation at
least seven days prior to the hearing and by sending written notice by mail to appellant(s) and the applicant at
least seven days prior to the date of the hearing of the appeal.
5.
Modification or Revocation of Approval of Deviation. An approval to deviate from the
requirements of section 8.68.160 shall be subject to modification or revocation by the planning and design
commission in the same manner as a conditional use permit pursuant to the provisions of chapter 17.808.
B.
Applications Filed on or Before July 1, 1995. An application to deviate from the
requirements of section 8.68.160 filed on or before July 1, 1995 shall be heard and decided by the city
manager pursuant to the following procedures:
1.
Procedure. No public hearing by the city manager shall be required. The city manager may
approve an application to deviate from the maximum sound limit, time limits, or place of sound measurement
requirements if the manager finds that, due to the nature, design or location of the operator’s facility, it is
capable of handling a higher sound level or an amplified sound ending at a later time or having the sound
measured at a different location without substantially increasing the likelihood that violations of any other
standards set forth in this chapter will occur and that approval of the application will not be detrimental to the
public health, safety or welfare as it relates to noise. The city manager may impose such conditions as may be
necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of this chapter and to protect the public health, safety or welfare
as it relates to noise.
2.
Notice. After the city manager’s decision on the application, the city manager shall provide
written notice by mail to all owners of real property shown on the latest equalized assessment roll within a
radius of 300 feet of the real property which is the subject of the application. In lieu of the assessment roll, the
city manager may utilize records of the county assessor or tax collector which contains more recent information
than the assessment roll. The notice shall advise the owners of the nature of the deviation sought and the
decision of the city manager and of the owner’s right to appeal the decision of the city manager to the city
council within ten days of the date of the notice. The city manager shall also publish notice of the decision in at
least one newspaper of general circulation.
3.
Appeal. Any person dissatisfied with the decision of the city manager on an application to
deviate from the maximum sound limit, time limits or place of sound measurement requirements of section
8.68.160 may appeal that decision to the city council by filing a notice of appeal with the city clerk pursuant to
section 1.24.010. Any appeal shall be filed within ten days of the date of the city manager’s decision. The city
clerk shall thereafter notice the matter for hearing before the city council by publishing notice of the hearing on
the appeal in at least one newspaper of general circulation at least seven days prior to the hearing and by
sending written notice by mail to appellant(s) and the applicant at least seven days prior to the date of the
hearing of the appeal.
4.
Modification or Revocation of Approval of Deviation. An approval to deviate from the
requirements of section 8.68.160 shall be subject to modification or revocation by the planning and design
commission in the same manner as a conditional use permit pursuant to the provisions of chapter 17.808.
(Ord. 20130021 § 19; Ord. 2012004 § 23; prior code § 66.02.212)
8.68.180 Portable gasolinepowered blowers.

A.
It is unlawful for any person to operate any portable gasolinepowered blower on residential
property or within two hundred (200) feet of residential property, except between the hours of nine a.m. and six
p.m. Monday through Saturday and between the hours of ten a.m. and four p.m. on Sunday.
B.
It is unlawful for any person to operate any portable gasolinepowered blower on residential
property or within two hundred (200) feet of residential property during the hours permitted by subsection A of
this section if the blower creates noise exceeding the following specified levels measured at a distance of fifty
(50) feet from the blower:
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1.
Blowers purchased or otherwise acquired between May 15, 1992, and November 15, 1995,
shall not exceed seventy (70) dba.
2.
five (65) dba.

Blowers purchased or otherwise acquired after November 15, 1995, shall not exceed sixty

3.
Blowers in use on or before the effective date of the ordinance codified in this chapter or
purchased or otherwise acquired before May 15, 1992, shall not exceed seventy (70) dba after November 15,
1993. (Prior code § 66.02.213)
Article III. General Noise Regulations
8.68.190 General noise regulations.

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this chapter and in addition thereto, it is unlawful for any
person to make or continue or cause to be made or continued any loud, unnecessary or unusual noise which
disturbs the peace and quiet of any neighborhood or which causes discomfort or annoyance to any reasonable
person of normal sensitiveness residing in the area.
The standards which may be considered in determining whether a violation of the provisions of this
section exists shall include, but not be limited to, the following:
A.

The sound level of the objectionable noise;

B.

The sound level of the ambient noise;

C.

The proximity of the noise to residential sleeping facilities;

D.

The nature and zoning of the area within which the noise emanates;

E.

The density of the inhabitation of the area within which the noise emanates;

F.

The time of day or night the noise occurs;

G.

The duration of the noise and its tonal informational or musical content;

H.

Whether the noise is continuous, recurrent or intermittent;

I.
66.03.301)

Whether the noise is produced by a commercial or noncommercial activity. (Prior code §

8.68.200 Specific unlawful noises.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the chapter to the contrary, the following acts, among others,
are declared to be loud, disturbing, and unnecessary noises in violation of this chapter, but such enumeration
shall not be deemed to be exclusive, namely:
A.
Motor Noises. Any noise made by the motor of any automobile, truck, tractor, motorcycle,
not reasonably required in the operation thereof under the circumstances and shall include but not be limited to
backfiring and motor racing.
B.
Horns and Signaling Devices. The sounding of any horn or signaling device on any
automobile, motorcycle, trolley coach or other vehicle on any street or public place of the city, except as a
danger warning; the creation by means of any such signaling device of any unreasonably loud or harsh sound;
and the sounding of any such device for an unnecessary and unreasonable period of time. The use of any
signaling device except one operated by hand or electricity; the use of any horn, whistle or any other device
operated by engine exhaust; and the use of any such signaling device when traffic is for any reason held up.
C.
Yelling and Shouting. Yelling, shouting, hooting, whistling, singing or blowing of horns on
the public streets, particularly between the hours of ten p.m. and seven a.m. or at any time or place so as to
annoy or disturb the quiet, comfort, or repose of persons in any office, or in any dwelling, hotel, motel,
apartment or other type of residence, or of any persons in the vicinity.
D.

Pile Drivers, Hammers, Etc. The operation between the hours of ten p.m. and seven a.m. of
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any pile driver, steam shovel, pneumatic hammer, derrick, steam or electric hoist or other appliance, the use of
which is attended by loud or unusual noise.
E.
Tools. The use or operation between the hours of ten p.m. and seven a.m. of any power
saw, power planer, or other powered tool or appliance or saw or hammer, or other tool, so as to disturb the
quiet, comfort, or repose of persons in any dwelling, hotel, motel, apartment, or other type of residence, or of
any person in the vicinity.
F.
Blowers. The operating of any noisecreating blower or power fan or any internal
combustion engine the operation of which causes noise due to the explosion of operating gases or fluids,
unless the noise from such blower or fan is muffled and such engine is equipped with a muffler device sufficient
to deaden such noise.
G.
Exhausts. The discharge into the open air of the exhaust of any steam engine, stationary
internal combustion engine, motor boat, or motor vehicle except through a muffler or other device which will
effectively prevent loud or explosive noises therefrom.
H.
Loading, Unloading—Opening Boxes. The creation of a loud and excessive noise in
connection with loading or unloading any vehicle or the opening and destruction of bales, boxes, crates, and
containers.
I.
Hawkers, Peddlers and Vendors. The shouting and crying of peddlers, hawkers and
vendors which disturbs the peace and quiet of persons in the neighborhood.
J.
Drums. The use of any drum or other instrument or device for the purpose of attracting
attention by creation of noise to any performance, show or sale.
K.
Transportation of Metal Rails, Pillars and Columns. The transportation of rails, pillars or
columns of iron, steel or other material, over and along streets and other public places upon carts, drays, cars,
trucks in any manner so as to cause loud noises or to disturb the peace and quiet of persons in the vicinity
thereof.
L.
Animals, Birds, Fowls. The keeping of any animal, fowl, or bird which by causing frequent or
long continued noise shall disturb the comfort or repose of persons in the vicinity.
M.
Any noise emitted from a radio, tape player, tape recorder, record player, compact disc
player or any other audible audio equipment, or television outdoors on or in any publicly owned property or
place, including, but not limited to, public parks, when such noise is audible to a person of normal hearing
sensitivity one hundred (100) feet from said radio, tape player, tape recorder, record player, compact disc
player or any other audible audio equipment, or television.
1.
Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter, no notice to appear shall be issued or
criminal complaint shall be filed for a violation of this subsection M unless the offending party is first given a
verbal or written notification of violation by any peace officer or other person charged with enforcing this
subsection M and a reasonable opportunity to correct said violation.
2.
Notwithstanding any other provision of this code, any person violating this subsection M
shall be guilty of an infraction and upon conviction thereof, shall be fined in accordance with the provisions of
Section 36900 (b) of the California Government Code.
This subsection M shall not apply to any act prohibited by Section 10.12.090 of this code or to
broadcasting from any vehicle as defined and regulated by Sections 10.60.010 through 10.60.090 of this code,
to the use of radios, tape players, tape recorders, record players, compact disc players or any other audible
audio equipment, or televisions in the course of an assembly for which a permit has been issued pursuant to
Sections 12.72.160 through 12.72.180 of this code or to a parade as defined and regulated by Sections
12.48.010 through 12.48.080 of this code, or to the use of radios, tape players, tape recorders, record players,
compact disc players or any other audible audio equipment, or televisions regulated by Section 12.44.210 of
this code. This subsection M shall apply notwithstanding the provisions of subsection B of Section 8.68.080 of
this chapter.
As used in this subsection M, “person of normal hearing sensitivity” means a person who has a
hearing threshold level of between zero and twentyfive (25) decibels HL averaged over the frequencies five
hundred (500), one thousand (1000) and two thousand (2000) hertz. (Ord. 2003011 § 1; prior code §
http://www.qcode.us/codes/sacramento/view.php?topic=8-8_68&showAll=1&frames=on

10/13

6/12/2016

Chapter 8.68 NOISE CONTROL

66.03.302)
8.68.210 Railroad locomotive whistles.

Except in cases of emergency or imminent danger, no person shall blow any railroad locomotive
whistle within the city. (Prior code § 66.03.303)
Article IV. Administrative Procedures
8.68.220 Administration.

Except for the enforcement of Section 8.68.200 of this chapter which shall be the responsibility of the
chief of police, and except for the enforcement of Section 8.68.060 of this chapter which shall be the
responsibility of the director of public works and the director of utilities in addition to any other person
authorized to enforce that section, the administration of this chapter is vested in the Sacramento City/county
health officer. The health officer shall be responsible for:
A.
Employing individuals trained in acoustical engineering or an equivalent field to assist the
health officer in the administration of this chapter;
B.

Training field inspectors;

C.

Procuring measuring instruments and training inspectors in their calibration and operation;

D.

Conducting a public education program in all aspects of noise control;

E.
Coordinating the noise control program with other governmental agencies. (Ord. 2002004
§ 9, 2002; prior code § 66.04.401)
8.68.230 Noise control program—Recommendations.

At least every third year following the effective date of this chapter, the health officer shall evaluate the
effectiveness of the noise control program and shall make recommendations to the city council for its
improvement. (Prior code § 66.04.402)
8.68.240 Rules and standards.

Within one year after the effective date of this chapter, the health officer with the advice and assistance
of other appropriate governmental agencies, shall investigate and recommend to the city council the following:
A.

Rules and procedures to be used in measuring noise;

B.
Noise standards for motor vehicle operation within the city. However, nothing within this
chapter shall be deemed to abridge or conflict with the powers of the state over motor vehicle control;
C.
Noise standards governing the construction, repair or demolition of a structure including
streets and other thoroughfares;
D.
Recommendations, if appropriate, for the establishment of sound levels standards for
nonresidentially zoned areas within the city. (Prior code § 66.04.403)
8.68.250 Special condition permits.

Notwithstanding any provision of this chapter, the zoning administrator may grant special condition
permits for a period not exceeding three days when the general purpose and intent of this chapter can be
carried out by the granting of the special condition permit, provided, however, that no permit shall be issued for
any activity which violates a provision of Section 8.68.080(E) of this chapter. Said special condition permits
may be renewed for periods not exceeding three days at the discretion of the zoning administrator. (Prior code
§ 66.04.404)
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8.68.260 Variance procedure.

A.
The owner or operator of a noise source that violates any of the provisions of this chapter
may file an application for a variance from the provisions of this chapter. The application shall set forth all
actions taken to comply with this chapter, the reasons why immediate compliance
cannot be achieved, a proposed method for achieving compliance, and a proposed time schedule for its
accomplishment. If the applicant determines that compliance cannot be feasibly achieved at all, the application
shall also set forth the reasons for such determination, the actions that have been taken to comply with this
chapter, a proposed method for complying as nearly as is feasible, and a proposed time schedule for its
accomplishment. The application shall be accompanied by a fee in the amount established by resolution of the
city council. A separate application shall be filed for each noise source; provided, however, that several mobile
sources under common ownership or several fixed sources on a single property may be combined into one
application.
B.
Except as provided in subsections C and D of this section, relating to required findings,
terms and conditions of granting a variance, and factors to take into consideration, the application for a
variance under this section shall be accepted and processed and a decision on the application shall be made
in the same manner and subject to the same procedures and requirements as a zoning administrator variance
under section 17.808.210 of this code.
C.
After the public hearing, the decisionmaker may grant a variance if it finds, after full
consideration of all of the facts, that strict compliance with the requirements of this chapter will cause practical
difficulties, unnecessary hardship, or unreasonable expense. A variance may be for a limited period and may
be subject to any terms, conditions, and requirements as the decisionmaker deems reasonable to achieve
maximum compliance with the provisions of this chapter. The terms, conditions and requirements may include,
but shall not be limited to, limitations on noise levels and operating hours.
D.
Each variance shall set forth the approved method of achieving maximum compliance and
a time schedule for its accomplishment. The decisionmaker shall consider the magnitude of nuisance caused
by the offensive noise, the uses of property within the area of impingement by the noise, the time factors
related to study, design, financing and construction of remedial work, the economic factors related to age and
useful life of equipment and the general public interest and welfare. (Ord. 20130021 § 20; Ord. 2009042 § 1;
prior code § 66.04.405)
8.68.270 Appeals.

The decision of the zoning administrator on a variance under this chapter shall be subject to appeal as
provided in chapter 17.812. (Ord. 20130021 § 21; Ord. 2011044 § 18; prior code § 66.04.407)
8.68.280 Violations.

A.
Upon the receipt of a complaint from any person, the chief of police, the health officer or
their duly authorized representatives may investigate and assess whether the alleged noise levels exceed the
noise standards set forth in this chapter. If such officers have reason to believe that any provision(s) of this
chapter has been violated, they may cause written notice to be served upon the alleged violator. Such notice
shall specify the provision(s) of this chapter alleged to have been violated and the facts alleged to constitute a
violation, including dBA readings noted and the time and place of their detection and may include an order that
corrective action be taken within a specified time. If corrective action is not taken within such specified time or
any extension thereof approved by the health officer, upon conviction the violation shall constitute a
misdemeanor. Each such violation committed or permitted to continue shall constitute a separate offense and
shall be punishable as such.
B.
Notwithstanding any contrary provision of this code, each fifteen (15) minute period that a
violation of Section 8.68.060 occurs shall constitute a separate violation. The administrative penalty for each
violation of Section 8.68.060 shall be one thousand dollars ($1,000.00). (Ord. 2005083 § 1; Ord. 2002004 §
http://www.qcode.us/codes/sacramento/view.php?topic=8-8_68&showAll=1&frames=on
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10; prior code § 66.04.408)
8.68.290 Other remedies.

A.
Provisions of this chapter are to be construed as an added remedy of abatement of the
public nuisance declared and not in conflict or derogation of any other action, proceedings or remedies
provided by law.
B.
Any violation of the provisions of this chapter shall be, and the same is declared to be
unlawful and a public nuisance, and the duly constituted authorities of the city shall, upon order of the city
council, immediately commence actions or proceedings for the abatement or enjoinment thereof in the manner
provided by law and shall take such steps and shall apply to such court or courts as may have jurisdiction to
grant such relief as will abate such nuisance. (Prior code § 66.04.409)
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